Public Document Pack
CHEVIOT AREA FORUM
WEDNESDAY, 9TH DECEMBER, 2015
A MEETING of the CHEVIOT AREA FORUM will be held in the ASSEMBLY HALL, KELSO HIGH
SCHOOL, BOWMONT STREET, KELSO on WEDNESDAY, 9 DECEMBER 2015 at 6.30 pm
J. J. WILKINSON,
Clerk to the Council,
2 December 2015

BUSINESS
1.

Chairman

2.

Welcome and Introductions.

3.

Apologies for Absence.

4.

Order of Business.

5.

Declarations of Interest.

6.

Minute. (Pages 1 - 8)

2 mins

2 mins

Minute of Meeting of Cheviot Area Forum held on 16 September 2015 to be
noted. (Copy attached.)
7.

Police Force of Scotland - 'J' Division Spotlight.

15 mins

Update report by Police Inspector detailing ongoing work and initiatives in
the Cheviot area.
8.

Financial Presentation Consultation

20 mins

Presentation by Chief Financial Officer.
9.

Citizens Advice

20 mins

Consider presentation by Iain Heard, Pension Wise Guidance Specialist.
10.

Health and Social Care Partnership - Draft Strategic Plan 2016 - 19
Presentation by representative from the Health and Social Care Partnership
of 2nd draft of the Strategic Plan for consultation. There will be the opportunity to
ask any questions on the Health & Social Care Partnership Draft Strategic
Plan which can be accessed by clicking on the following link:
http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/downloads/file/9708/integration_strategic_pla
n_2016-19-draft
The consultation questions and the web form can be accessed via

20 mins

https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/site/xfp/scripts/xforms_form.aspx?formID=4
51&language=en
11.

Draft Integrated Children and Young People's Plan 2015 -2018 (Pages 9
- 56)

20 mins

Update by Depute Chief Executive – People on the Draft Integrated Children
and Young People’s Plan. (Copy attached.)
12.

Scottish Fire & Rescue Service. (Pages 57 - 62)

15 mins

Update report detailing ongoing work and initiatives in the Cheviot Area.
(Copy attached.)
13.

Revenue, Capital and SB Local Works. (Pages 63 - 72)

15 mins

Consider update on the progress of the planned programme of revenue and
capital works, the work undertaken by the SB Local Squad and the proposed
SB Local Small Schemes for the current financial year in the Cheviot area.
(Copy attached)
14.

Proposed Public Holidays 2016 (Pages 73 - 74)

10 mins

(Copy attached.)
15.

Open Questions.

20 mins

Opportunity for members of the public to raise any issues not included on
the agenda.
16.

Community Council Spotlight.

20 mins

Consider updates and matters of interest to Community Councils.
(a) Oxnam Road, Jedburgh
(b) Skiprunningburn Flood Protection
17.

Date of Next Meeting - Cheviot Area Forum.

5 mins

The next meeting will be held on Wednesday, 3 February 2016 in Jedburgh
(Venue to be confirmed).
18.

Any Other Items Previously Circulated.

19.

Any Other Items which the Chairman Decides are Urgent.

NOTES
1.
Timings given above are only indicative and not intended to inhibit Members’
discussions.
2.

Members are reminded that, if they have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any
item of business coming before the meeting, that interest should be declared prior to
commencement of discussion on that item. Such declaration will be recorded in the
Minute of the meeting.

Membership of Committee:- Councillors Basset, Bridgewood, J. Brown, Burton, Cook,
Drummond, Fry, Govan, Jarvis, Johnston, Leitch, McNulty, S. Mountford, A. J. Nicol, Ogilvie,
S. Scott, Stewart, R. Stewart, T. Weatherston and Wight
Please direct any enquiries to Fiona Henderson Tel: 01835 826502
fhenderson@scotborders.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL
CHEVIOT AREA FORUM
MINUTE of the MEETING of the
CHEVIOT AREA FORUM held in the
Assembly Hall, Jedburgh Grammar
School on Wednesday, 16 September
2015 at 6.30 p.m.
-----------------Present:-

Apologies:In Attendance:-

Councillors T. Weatherston (Chairman), J. Brown, S. Mountford, A. Nicol, S.
Scott, R. Stewart.
Community Councillors J. Bassett, J. Taylor, G. Fry.
Mr Matt Acton, Station Manager (Scottish Fire and Rescue Service), Inspector
Carol Wood, (Police Scotland – J Division), Mr Warwick Shaw, Head of
Delivery Support, Estates and Facilities (NHS Borders),
Community Councillors A. Drummond, S. Stewart, T. Jackson, L. Johnston, D.
Ogilvie, P. Bridgewood, N. Jarvis, E. McNulty, Locality Team Leader (Ms K.
Horsley).
Lead Localities Officer ( Mr D. Mallin), Area Neighbourhood Manager (Mr A.
Finnie), Democratic Services Officer (Mrs F Henderson).

Members of the Public:- 0
----------------------------------------

1.
2.

WELCOME
The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting.
MINUTE
There had been circulated copies of the Minute of the Meeting of the Cheviot Area Forum of
3 June 2015.
DECISION
AGREED to approve the Minute for signature by the Chairman.

3.

CHEVIOT LOCALITIES PILOT UPDATE
The Chairman welcomed Mr Mallin, Lead Officer for Localities to the meeting to update the
Area Forum on the Cheviot Localities Pilot. Mr Mallin gave a brief summary of the
Localities established in Edinburgh and Aberdeenshire and explained the background and
context in relation to the Christie Report 2011, the Wood Commission 2014 – Working For
All, the Community Empowerment (Scotland) Act 2015 and the JIT – Learning from Health
and Social Care. It was explained that a Localities approach aimed to improve
collaboration, reduce duplication, improve outcomes for people and communities, build
services around communities (Christie Commission) and the implementation of the
Community Empowerment (Scotland) Act 2015. Mr Mallin went on to explain the
Collaboration Spectrum , outline the plan stages and next steps which included Local
Officers Workshop, Community Engagement events, Local Tasking and Coordinating
Group (TaCG), Cheviot Local Plan - incorporating community–led plans and review and
report. Mr Mallin answered questions and the Chairman thanked him for his presentation.
DECISION
NOTED.

Page 1

4.

FOOD WASTE COLLECTION SERVICE
The Chairman welcomed Fiona Munro, from Neighbourhood Services, to give a
presentation on the introduction by Scottish Borders Council of a Food Waste Collection
service. Ms Munro referred to the background which led to the decision to introduce the
new service. The Waste (Scotland) Regulations 2012 required food waste collections to be
introduced by 1 January 2016. Food waste was seen as a valuable resource, a way of
diverting waste from landfill and an increased recycling rate. In accordance with the
regulations and Scottish Government urban versus rural classification the collection service
in the Scottish Borders would involve approximately 24,500 households and businesses.
Phase 1 saw weekly kerbside food waste collections start in Galashiels, Tweedbank,
Selkirk and Peebles commencing on 25 May. Phase 2 involved Jedburgh and Hawick and
started on 7th September. Ms Munro had brought along examples of the caddies, together
with biodegradable liners and guidance leaflets, which would be delivered to households
during the week prior to the start of collections. Each household would have a 5 litre silver
kitchen caddy and liners, in which to deposit daily food waste. The tied bags of waste
should then be transferred from the kitchen caddy into the outdoor brown caddies of 23 litre
for a single household or 140 litre for communal household. It was emphasised that the
food waste collection service also came under animal by-product legislation and as such
would be closely regulated. There would be no effluent or waste produced during handling.
Purpose-built collection vehicles would transport the waste to central skips from where it
would be taken to the nearest food waste management site at Levenseat Ltd., Midlothian.
From 1 January 2016, also under the Waste (Scotland) Regulations 2012, there would be
food waste collections from an estimated 140 businesses producing over 50 kg waste per
week and from an estimated 520 businesses producing over 5 kg per week. Following the
presentation officers were asked questions, particularly in relation to how the service would
be monitored. Ms Munro advised that through communications and guidance members of
the public would be strongly encouraged to take up the service and use it as intended.
There would be monitoring through kerbside checks and, particularly in the early stages if
thought necessary, householders may be visited to be given further advice. The Chairman
thanked Ms Munro for her presentation.
DECISION
NOTED the presentation.

5.

6.

URGENT BUSINESS
Under Section 50B(4)(b) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, the Chairman was
of the opinion that the item dealt with in the following paragraphs should be considered at
the meeting as a matter of urgency, in view of the need to keep Members informed.
LOCAL ACCESS AND TRANSPORT STRATEGY (LATS)
The Chairman welcomed Graeme Johnstone, Lead Officer, Scottish Borders Council to the
Forum to give a presentation on the Local Access and Transport Strategy (LATS). Mr
Johnstone explained that a new Strategy Document was required as the existing Strategy
was out of date, access and transport were key issues in the Scottish Borders, it would
provide strategic direction and could be a valuable bidding document. The main issues to
be covered by the Strategy would include:








The route to markets;
Public transport;
Walking, cycling and horse riding;
Road maintenance;
Forestry;
Road safety;
Parking; and
Low carbon.

Page 2

The consultation, which would end on 23 October 2015, would be undertaken through
electronic questionnaire, key consultees, presentations to Area Forums, and written
information available through Libraries, contact centres and council departments. Following
the closure of the consultation process, consideration would be given to all responses
received and the main strategy document would be developed for presentation to the
Development Working Group and Committee before finalisation of the Strategy Document.
Mr Johnstone concluded his presentation by advising where to send responses and
answering Members questions.
DECISION
NOTED the presentation.
7.0

POLICE FORCE OF SCOTLAND – UPDATE FOR ‘J’ DIVISION
Inspector Carol Wood was present at the meeting to update the Cheviot Area Forum on
performance, activities and issues across the Ward for the period up to 31 August 2015. The
Ward Plan Priorities for Kelso and District had been reviewed and amended and were
highlighted as Dishonesty, Road Safety, Antisocial Behaviour and Drug Dealing and Misuse
of Drugs. The Ward Plan Priorities for Jedburgh and District had also been amended and
were highlighted as Drug Dealing and Misuse, Road Safety, Anti-Social Behaviour and Rural
Crime. In relation to the planned priorities for Kelso and District it was reported that under
Drugs Dealing and Misuse of Drugs Police Scotland were undergoing a test phase on a new
stop and search database, which went online on 1 June 2015. Validation and testing of the
data was ongoing and data collected since it began was not available but statistical
information would be provided to the local scrutiny board. A number of stop/searches were
carried out in June, July and August and a total of 3 offences were recorded in relation to
drugs offences in the Kelso and District area. Personal safety advice in relation to drugs
was contained on the Police Scotland website http://www.scotland.police.uk/keep-safe/.
The public were encouraged to inform the Police of any information they might have in
relation to drugs misuse, however, if they wished to remain anonymous they could contact
Crimestoppers on 0800555111. In relation to road safety, roads policing officers carried out
a total of 12 road checks in the ward area during the last quarter up to 31 August 2015, with
particular emphasis being given to the re-education of young drivers. In a bid to improve the
driving skills of all young drivers in our area Safer Communities continued to promote the
Skills For Life, young driver campaign and courses remained available in October and
November 2015. This was an offer of free advanced driver training and had already proven
to be extremely popular. There were 19 road traffic offences committed in the Kelso and
District area between June and August 2015, eight of these were in relation to speeding
offences and five were MOT offences. Local and Roads Policing officers would continue to
deal robustly with anyone found to be speeding. During August, PC Howgego carried out a
number of parking patrols of Kelso Town Centre, which had resulted in 11 warnings and 6
FPT tickets being issued for parking offences. It was emphasised that those working in the
town centre should park in adjacent car parks to prevent overstaying and then subsequently
being issued with a ticket. In regard to Dishonesty, thefts continued to be an issue within the
Kelso area, Officers continued to work to detect and prevent such crimes and crime
prevention advice was available on the Police Scotland website. Residents were requested
to continue to remain vigilant and keep doors and windows locked to prevent opportunist
criminals. It was further reported that autumn might bring casual workers into the area who
were looking to carry out gardening or other maintenance work. Some of these people might
be looking to overcharge elderly or unsuspecting residents and the public were encouraged
to be vigilant and if they saw people working on a neighbour’s property, or got people touting
for work in their area, it was recommended not to use them but opt for a local reputable firm.
In relation to Antisocial Behaviour which was a priority, the police were working with partners
at the Antisocial Behaviour Unit in Scottish Borders Council, Victim Support Scotland, and

Page 3

housing providers, along with the public, to tackle such matters. Regular patrols were carried
out at known hotspots, and premises were proactively targeted and individuals where
antisocial behaviour had been an issue. Anyone who was the victim of this type of behaviour
should report it, at the time of the incident, to the police. If it was an ongoing issue, this
should be reported to the Antisocial Behaviour Unit helpline on 0800 028 5711. Seven Fixed
Penalty Tickets were issued during the period within Kelso and District Ward covering 6
Breach of the Peace and 1 Drunk and Incapable.
7.1

In terms of Jedburgh and District, it was reported that during the last quarter there were five
stop/searches carried out which recovered prohibited substances. Three house searches
were carried out in the ward area during the last quarter, which had resulted in drugs and a
cannabis cultivation being recovered. Four individuals had been reported to the Procurator
Fiscal for drug possession and drug production offences and Police Scotland continued to
focus on this area of business, as the affect it had on local communities was well known. In
relation to road safety a total of four road checks were carried out in the ward area during the
quarter to 31 August 2015. Two fixed penalty tickets were issued - one for speeding and one
for the use of a mobile phone. Two warnings were given to drivers for the anti-social use of a
vehicle. During the last quarter, three drivers had been charged with driving whilst under the
influence of alcohol as well as a number of other road traffic offences. The drivers were male
and female and were aged 19, 51 and 52. These incidents were in St Boswells and
Jedburgh. Two further drivers had been charged with careless driving following police
attendance at road traffic accidents. In terms of Anti-Social Behaviour only one fixed penalty
ticket was issued over the reporting period for anti-social behaviour. However, a 22 year old
female was reported to the Procurator Fiscal and had her music equipment seized after she
caused a disturbance for her neighbours. The police continued to engage with those
responsible for any youth antisocial behaviour in the ward area and the Community Beat
Officer and Locality Integration Officer regularly discussed youth issues and working with
partners including education to proactively tackle such issues. In relation to rural crime over
the last quarter there had been a small number of rural thefts. Of particular note was that
three vehicles were broken into whilst parked near to the Wallace Monument at Dryburgh.
These were tourist’s vehicles and all had a quantity of goods stolen. This particular crime
that had raised its head time and again over the years and it was very disappointing.
Although the Police tried to give attention to these locations, as the crimes were so sporadic
and the locations fairly remote, it was very difficult to ‘be in the right place at the right time’ to
catch those responsible. Advice to farmers and residents in rural areas to take as many
safety measures as they could to secure their property continued to be circulated. If anyone
wanted specific advice they were advised to contact their local community officer either by
phoning Jedburgh police station or emailing them via the Police Scotland website link.
Officers in the Community Safety department based within Scottish Borders Council were
also on hand to give information on joining Farmwatch, SB Alert etc. Pro-active visits to
itinerant scrap metal dealers continued as well as liaison with a number of partners to ensure
premises were being run appropriately.

7.2

In terms of Initiatives and Planned activity it was reported that as the darker nights were
approaching, there would be an increase of patrols by the community officers in an effort to
deter and prevent incidents of youth calls, which could be prevalent at this time of year.
Police Scotland continued to promote the National Hate crime campaign, which was in its
final week. The purpose of this was to raise awareness on what hate crime was, how it
affected victims, families and communities and included information on the methods available
for reporting such instances/crimes. The campaign had been advertised on various social
media platforms and a serious of posters had been circulated in the local communities. The
Student Safety campaign was launched on 31 August 2015 and more information was
available on the Police Scotland website with linked to information on how students could
keep themselves safe. Social media sites had been used to full advantage and had included
a film and interactive quiz. Police Scotland also launched the messaging system Instagram
with this campaign. A large proportion of the young people in the Scottish Borders were

Page 4

engaged in further education and the aim was to support young people to remain safe during
their time as students.
DECISION
NOTED the report.
8.0

8.1

8.2

8.3

ENGAGEMENT WITH NHS BORDERS
An update on current activity was given by NHS Head of Delivery Support, Estates and
Facilities, Warwick Shaw.
In-Patient Care for Jedburgh
With reference to paragraph 4.5 of the Minute of 3 June 2015, following letters from
Councillor Brown and Community Councillor Gordon, the Chief Executive (NHS) had sent a
letter about in-patient care in Hawick. Mr Shaw explained that the care of inpatients was not
any part of the GP services (contract). GPs provided medical cover to Community Hospitals
on a supplementary, opt-in contracted basis and were under no obligation to provide the
service beyond their stated limitations. However, an agreement was in place with Kelso GPs
to provide cover for Jedburgh residents, including all patients registered with a Jedburgh GP
at Kelso Community Hospital. Jedburgh patients with ongoing in-patient care needs could be
treated within the Borders General Hospital or the other two Community Hospitals. The NHS
remained fully cognisant of the need to provide a resilient model of care to all Borders
residents and had commenced a formal Option Appraisal process, as part of the in-patient
review, to identify the preferred model for the provision of inpatient care in Community
Hospitals. Consideration would be given to all possible care models and assessment against
the key principles of the clinical strategy, most notably being safe, fair, equitable and
affordable. Elected Members for the Jedburgh area remained concerned.
Stroke Treatment in Borders
It was reported that people who suffered a stroke in the Borders benefited from a local
service which was the best performing in Scotland. Stroke was the third most common
cause of death in Scotland and the most common cause of severe physical disability
amongst adults. It was estimated that about 15,000 people in Scotland had a stroke each
year. The 2015 Scottish Stroke Care Audit (SSCA) just published showed NHS Borders
patients receiving an “appropriate” Stroke Care Bundle was the highest in Scotland, at 87%
during 2014; some 22% higher than the Scottish average of 65%. The ‘Bundle’ referred to a
group of specific interventions and processes of care that significantly improved patient
outcomes following a stroke if delivered together rather than separately.
A&E Waiting Times
In relation to A&E waiting times, Mr Shaw reported that only in March did the BGH fall below
the NHS Scotland figure target being at least 95% treated within 4 hrs. The figures for last
week showed that out of 502 attendances, 98% had been seen within 4 hrs. The Annual
Review Public Session would be held on Thursday, 17 September 2015 between 2.30 p.m.
and 4 p.m. in The Tryst.
DECISION
NOTED the report.

9.0

FIRE AND RESCUE
Fire Service Update
Mr Matt Acton, Station Manager explained that the purpose of the report circulated was to
inform the Cheviot Area Forum on Scottish Fire and Rescue Service activity since the last
meeting on 3rd June 2015. The report detailed that during the period of the report there had
been 10 House Fires (House Alight x 5, Building Alight x 3 and Grain dryer alight x 2.
Occurrences of Fire – Open 10, occurrence of Special Services 17 resulting in 3 casualties
and 28 unwanted Fire Alarm Signals. The report explained that within the Local Fire and
Rescue Plan 2014-2017 for the Scottish Borders, 5 priorities had been identified: Reduction

Page 5

of Dwelling Fires; Reduction of Fire Casualties and Fatalities; Reduction of Deliberate Fire
Setting (Not including Dwellings); Reduction of Unwanted Fire Alarm Signals; and the
Reduction in Road Traffic Collisions. In relation to partnership working, The Scottish Fire and
Rescue Service (SFRS), Community Action Team (CAT) within the Scottish Borders core
work centred on the on-going delivery of the SFRS Home Fire Safety Visit (HFSV) policy.
The team continued to expand its partnership working with key the Key agencies including
Police Scotland, Health, Social care and Housing in order to focus on members of local
communities at High Risk from fire and achieve outcomes in helping to reduce overall
numbers of accidental dwelling fires. Fire raising awareness sessions presented by the team
to partner agency practitioners had been and continued to be successful in promoting HFSVs
and encouraging agencies to make referrals using the SFRS CSET online booking system.
9.1

Fire prevention and protection activity over recent years had been key to reducing the
number of fires, casualties and losses in Scotland thus minimising the economic and social
impact of fire on communities. The seasonal community safety calendar provided the
catalyst for a number of initiatives and schemes throughout the calendar year.

9.2

Activity which was ongoing now within the Cheviot Ward area included Scottish Fire and
Rescue Service staffs in all local stations providing Home Fire Safety Visits all year round.
The visits provided the householder with a home visit, focussing on identifying and reducing
the risks of fire in the home. Smoke detectors with a 10-year battery life were provided as
part of this free service; Firesharp was an initiative for Primary 6 pupils, providing face-toface education within local Primary schools on matters of fire risk and prevention; Fire Safety
Audits provided a targeted examination of business premises and their relevant documents
to ascertain how the premises were being managed regarding fire safety. The enforcement
officer also engaged with members of staff to confirm their level of fire safety awareness;
Unwanted Fire Signals were being addressed by phased intervention actions which identified
premises which were producing ‘false alarms’, provided guidance on how to reduce a
reoccurrence, and could also invoke legislation if occurrences failed to reduce in number.
The SFRS Safeguarding Policy and Procedure for Protection of Children and Adults at Risk
of Harm was implemented to link into adult and child protection. The introduction of the policy
had created closer ties with Social Services within Scottish Borders and ensured those
people and families that fire crews identify as at risk were brought to the attention of Social
Services and had resulted in joint visits to homes to reduce risk to those occupiers. Eight
adults had been referred during the reporting period.

9.3

Community Action Team (CAT) had delivered road safety awareness to secondary schools
throughout the Scottish Borders with the support of the local Whole time personnel from
Galashiels and Hawick. The strong partnership with the local Domestic Abuse Advocacy
Service and involvement in MARAC (Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference) put the Fire
and Rescue Service at the forefront of delivering the agenda of outcome six of the Local Fire
Plan. The LALO and Scottish Borders Station Manager for Prevention and Protection were
fully involved in all local MARAC processes, attending the monthly conferences and all
steering group meetings. Involvement with the inaugural twelve-month CAADA (Coordinated Action against Domestic Abuse) assessment had provided the additional
advantage of strengthening the partnership with external stakeholders, in particular Police
Scotland, Adult and Child protection services and local housing providers. The Autumn
Thematic Action plan which ran until end of November included Student Safety, Electrical
Safety, Chimney Safety, Bonfire safety and Older Vulnerable Persons.
DECISION
NOTED the report.

10.

NEIGHBOURHOOD SMALL SCHEMES UPDATE
With reference to paragraph 7.1 of the Minute of 3 June 2015, there had been circulated
copies of a report by the Service Director Neighbourhood Services on Neighbourhood Small
Schemes and Quality of Life, which sought approval for the proposed new Neighbourhood

Page 6

Small Schemes from the Area Forum and updated the Forum on previously approved
Neighbourhood and Quality of Life Schemes. The Area Neighbourhood Manager advised
that the allocated budget (£34,702) for small schemes was available through Neighbourhood
Services for the Cheviot Area in 2015/16. The report detailed those schemes which had
been approved, completed and due for completing prior to 31 March 2016. Following
approval of the schemes detailed in the report, there remained a budget of £29,927 available
for Neighbourhood Small Schemes. In addition, a budget of £20,000 was available for
Quality of Life schemes in the Cheviot Area Forum Area in 2015/16. It had previously been
agreed that this budget would be split equally between Kelso and District and Jedburgh and
District Wards. There remained £7,500 for Kelso and District and £10,000 for Jedburgh and
District.
DECISION
(a) AGREED the following new Neighbourhood Small Schemes for implementation :-

(b)

11.

(i)

Upgrade town signage on approaches to Jedburgh Town

£900

(ii)

Erect 2 no. street name plates within Hendersyde Estate, Kelso

£225

(iii)

Remark bays within East Bowmont Street Car Park, Kelso

£650

NOTED:(i)

the update on previously approved Neighbourhood Small Schemes as
detailed in Appendix A to the report; and

(ii)

the update on previously approved Quality of Life Schemes as detailed in
Appendix B to the report.

OPEN QUESTIONS
There were no issues raised.
DECISION
NOTED.

12.

COMMUNITY COUNCIL SPOTLIGHT
Oxnam Road Wall, Jedburgh – With reference to paragraphs 9.1 and 9.2 of the Minute of 3
June 2015, works had been undertaken and completed, to remove off site, the large stones
and rubble which had been left on the grass area adjacent to Oxnam Road. The bollards
had been installed in the footway ex adverso the properties occupied by Mr & Mrs Scott and
Mr & Mrs Foggon, although three further bollards remained to be installed when they had
been received from the suppliers. Officers of the Council’s Infrastructure section had recently
been in contact with a representative of Scottish Gas Network (SGN) regarding the timings of
the diversion of the existing gas main in connection with the permanent carriageway
widening between Blair Avenue and The Boundaries junction. SGN had intimated that the
diversion works were provisionally programmed for late September/early October, however,
this timing had still to be finalised and confirmed. The Council’s in-house surfacing
contractor, SBc Contracts, had intimated that they had a fully committed surfacing works
programme until after the October School holiday week which ended on Friday 16th October.
This meant that any further surfacing schemes would not be undertaken until after that date
and provision had therefore been made to carry out the surfacing works at Oxnam Road
during late October/early November, although this was subject to the outcome of a full
consultation process to be undertaken with local businesses, the Community Council and
Ward Members, on the specifics of the works to be undertaken and the required temporary
traffic management.

Page 7

DECISION
NOTED the report.
12.1 Skiprunning Burn, Jedburgh – With reference to paragraph 9.3 of the Minute of 3 June
2015, the Area Neighbourhood Manager advised that the advance accommodation works at
the Larkhall Accommodation had been completed and the main Contractor for the Phase 2
works would be SBc Contracts. The Phase 2 works started on 14th September 2015 and
were programmed to be completed by Christmas. The Phase 1A works (flood resilient
measures to properties at Burn Wynd) would be undertaken in parallel with the Phase 2
works.
DECISION
NOTED.
13.

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
It was agreed that a presentation on the School Estates Review be arranged for a future
meeting.
DECISION
AGREED.

14.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
The Chairman confirmed that the next meeting of the Cheviot Area Forum was scheduled for
Wednesday, 9 December 2015 in Kelso.
DECISION
NOTED the date of the next meeting of the Cheviot Area Forum and that the venue was
to be confirmed.

The meeting concluded at 8.30 p.m.

Page 8

Draft Integrated
Children and Young
People's Plan
IN THE SCOTTISH BORDERS 2015-2018
SUMMARY

Page 9

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PERSONS
LEADERSHIP GROUP

Agenda Item 11

DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN & YOUNG
PEOPLE’S PLAN 2015-2018

INTRODUCTION

This Integrated Children and Young Peoples Plan (ICYPP) has been
developed by the Scottish Borders Children & Young People’s Leadership
Group. The members are from Scottish Borders Council, NHS Borders,
Police Scotland, Scottish Children’s Reporter Administration and the third
sector organisations who are responsible for providing services for children
and young people across the Scottish Borders. The plan sets out how
services will work together to make things better for all children and young
people, to help them have a good start in life and to go on to have success as
adults.
Whilst a large number of our children are doing really well across many
areas of their lives , we know that some because of where they live or
their family arrangements need extra support to ensure they can have the
success other children and young people achieve. Over the next 3 years,
the Children & Young People’s Leadership Group will aim to make sure that
all children and young people can achieve their potential regardless of their
background.
David Parker
Chair of Community Planning Partnership

Page 10
2 | DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLAN | 2015-2018

DEVELOPING THE PLAN

In developing this plan, the Leadership Group has worked e to understand more
fully where extra attention is needed to make things better for children and young
people in the Scottish Borders. The Scottish Borders is a safe and healthy place to
live when compared with other areas in Scotland. However, information has shown
that just living in certain areas can make things more difficult and this means that:
• In some areas, exam results are not as good as across the Scottish Borders as a
whole
• In some communities, children and young people have poorer health and
wellbeing.
Taking forward this plan will mean that services will continue to work together and
will concentrate on reducing the differences that are experienced by some children
and young people across the Scottish Borders. The Leadership Group will make
sure that all services use the key aims of the United Nations Convention on the
Rights of the Child (UNCRC) and the Getting It Right For Every child approach to
provide the right support for our children and young people.
The Children and Young People’s Leadership Group is proud of the services for
children and young people in the Scottish Borders. There have been some real
achievements and improvements over the last 3 years, some examples of these are:
• The Wellbeing Web tool has been introduced to obtain the views of children and
parent/carers and to track the progress of support
• Members of the Youth Parliament have been supported to represent the views of
young people
• An innovative set of integrated services have been established to provide support
for children and young people affected by domestic abuse
• Early Years Centres have opened in 3 target areas
• Fostering and residential services have achieved improving grades in recent care
inspections
• The Psychology of Parenting programme has been introduced in the Scottish
Borders
• There has been an upward trend over the last 4 years in attainment levels for
young people.
However it is clear that there is more to do. Below is the vision for our services.

Page 11
DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLAN | 2015-2018 | 3

OUR VISION FOR CHILDREN
AND YOUNG PEOPLE IN THE
SCOTTISH BORDERS

safe
included

respected

healthy

All children and
young people in the
Scottish Borders
will achieve their
unique potential

responsible

active

nurtured
achieving

The following priorities have been included in the plan as areas where children and
young people’s services will focus on more closely over the next 3 years.

Page 12
4 | DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLAN | 2015-2018

PRIORITIES

•
•
•
•
•

Raising attainment and achievement for all and closing the gap between the
lowest and highest achievers
Improving health and reducing health inequalities
Keeping children and young people safe
Improving the wellbeing and life chances for our most vulnerable children
and young people
Increasing participation and engagement.

WHAT WILL SUCCESS
LOOK LIKE?
Over the next 3 years, we aim to make real improvements in the following ways:
•
•
•

•
•
•

Reduce the differences in exam results between the highest achieving areas and
those communities that have the lowest exam results
All Children and Young People have the knowledge and skills to proceed to adult
working life
Differences in the health outcomes that children and young people experience
will be reduced, taking account of the importance of family situation and
background. To make improvements in health for all children and young people
we will expand the range of activities and opportunities available in and out of
school
Ensure that children and young people who need extra support feel more
secure and cared for and fewer children and young people experience abuse
and neglect
The life chances for all children and young people will be improved regardless of
their own backgrounds and family arrangements
Ensure that our children and young people are encouraged to be involved in
planning and to have a say in how services are provided.

Page 13
DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLAN | 2015-2018 | 5

To achieve these priorities, we will review the way services are organised to ensure
that a range of services is available across the Scottish Borders. Our staff are
skilled and committed and the right training will be provided to help them make
things better for our children and young people.
Below are some examples of the type of work which will be taken forward over
the next 3 years to achieve improvements:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

every young person leaving school in the Scottish Borders will have the offer of a
job, training or further education opportunity
there will be an increase in the number of schools that will work together to
focus on improving exam results for young people in the communities right
across the Borders
It will be easier for parents to be involved in all parts of children and young
people’s learning, providing ways for families to learn together
services will be organised across the Borders to better support children and
young people as soon as they need help in order to stop problems becoming
more serious
the mental health needs of children and young people will be considered in
the same way as physical needs and mental health support will be increased if
required
staff will continue to have access to the right kind of training to help them build
and increase the skills, knowledge and confidence to keep children and young
people safe
young people who may self-harm will be more easily identified and supported
arrangements and support for children and young people who are in care will be
improved
children and young people will be better supported to deal with a range of
difficulties
the range of volunteering opportunities for children and young people will be
increased.

Page 14
6 | DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLAN | 2015-2018

CONSULTATION QUESTIONS
QUESTION 1: Do we have the right priorities?
Please provide details of any areas we also need to consider.

QUESTION 2: Do you agree with the aims and outcomes
set out in the plan?

YES

NO

YES

NO

YES

NO

YES

NO

YES

NO

QUESTION 3: Do you think that the plan will help us deliver
our vision that all children and young people achieve their unique potential?

QUESTION 4: Is the plan easy to understand?

QUESTION 5: Is it clear around what it hopes to achieve
for children and young people?

QUESTION 6: To be able to deliver on the priorities we have set out in the plan,
what areas do you think we should focus on in the next 3 years?

Page 15
DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLAN | 2015-2018 | 7

You can get this document on audio CD, in large print, and various other
formats by contacting us at the address below. In addition, contact the
address below for information on language translations, additional copies,
or to arrange for an officer to meet with you to explain any areas of the
publication that you would like clarified.
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE
Council Headquarters | Newtown St Boswells | MELROSE | TD6 0SA
tel: 0300 100 1800 | email: strategy@scotborders.gov.uk

Printed in the Scottish Borders. Designed by Scottish Borders Council Graphic Design Section. KG/10/15.

Page 16

IN THE SCOTTISH BORDERS 2015-2018

The Community Planning Partnership is committed to improving the well-being of all children
and young people across the Scottish Borders. We translate this commitment into action
through the work of the Children and Young People’s Leadership Group which brings together
partners from Scottish Borders Council, NHS Border

Page 17

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PERSONS
LEADERSHIP GROUP

Draft Integrated
Children
and
Young
1. INTRODUCTION
People's Plan
DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG
PEOPLES PLAN 2015-2018

CONTENTS

DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG
PEOPLE'S PLAN 2015-2018
FOREWORD

3

1.

INTRODUCTION

5

2.

STRATEGIC CONTEXT

7

3.

ACHIEVEMENTS 2012-15

13

4.

VISION AND PRIORITIES

17

5.

STRATEGIC OUTCOMES AND HIGH LEVEL ACTIONS

21

6.

WORKFORCE PLANNING

27

7.

RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING

29

8.

ENSURING DELIVERY OF THE PLAN

30

9.

ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

31

APPENDICES
1.

GLOSSARY

35

2.

REFERENCES

36

WORKING IN PARTNERSHIP WITH

18
2 | DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLESPage
PLAN | 2015-2018

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES
STRATEGIC OUTCOMES AND HIGH LEVEL ACTIONS | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | DELIVERY OF THE PLAN | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN & YOUNG
PEOPLE’S PLAN 2015-2018

FOREWORD

The Community Planning Partnership is committed to improving the wellbeing of all children and
young people across the Scottish Borders. We translate this commitment into action through
the work of the Children and Young People’s Leadership Group which brings together partners
from Scottish Borders Council, NHS Borders, Police Scotland, the Scottish Children’s Reporter
Administration and the voluntary sector. The Group focuses on shared priorities to deliver
meaningful and sustainable improvements to the lives of all our children and young people,
particularly the most vulnerable.
The planning and delivery of our services are underpinned by the principles of the United Nations
Convention on the Rights of the Child (UNCRC) and contribute to the Community Planning
Partnership (CPP) Single Outcome Agreement.
By embedding ‘Getting It Right For Every Child’ (GIRFEC), we will ensure that all our children and
young people are safe, healthy, achieving, nurtured, active, respected, responsible and included
achieving their unique potential and making a positive contribution to society.
Scottish Borders offers rich opportunities for children and young people to thrive and go on to
be confident and successful adults. We want outcomes for all our children and young people
to improve whilst closing the gap between our most deprived and least deprived families and
communities, targeting resources at our most vulnerable children and young people.
A strong emphasis on developing early years services will enable us to reduce the cycles of
poverty, inequalities and poor outcomes and will allow us to provide all children and young
people with the best start in life, helping them to achieve their full potential within nurturing and
supportive environments.
This plan builds on the achievements of the previous Children and Young People’s Services Plan
2012-2015. It also sets out a vision and priorities for the future, highlighting our full commitment
to work together in partnership to pursue improved outcomes for all children, young people and
families.
David Parker
Chair of Community Planning Partnership

Page
19 CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN | 2015-2018 | 3
DRAFT
INTEGRATED

Page
20
4 | DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN
| 2015-2018

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES
STRATEGIC OUTCOMES AND HIGH LEVEL ACTIONS | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | DELIVERY OF THE PLAN | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN & YOUNG
PEOPLE’S PLAN 2015-2018

1. INTRODUCTION

This Integrated Children & Young People’s Plan (ICYPP) sets the strategic direction of service
delivery to create opportunities and conditions so that children and young people in the Scottish
Borders have the best start in life.
The development of this ICYPP has been underpinned by the United Nations Convention on the
Rights of the Child (UNCRC) legislation (the most recent of which has been the Children and
Young People (Scotland) Act 2014) and a range of national policy drivers such as Curriculum
for Excellence and `Getting it Right For Every Child’. It also builds on previous multi-agency
planning and service developments in the Scottish Borders. The Plan is closely aligned to
the (CPP) priorities. In doing so, partners intend to make better use of available data to drive
improvement and continue to develop new data sets. In addition, the Plan expresses our
commitment to understanding more fully the totality of our resources and budgets for children
and young people’s services across the partnership and explore ways to use these more
creatively and efficiently. Through the life of this Plan, we will continue to work to strengthen
relationships between the public and third sectors.
The Children and Young People’s Leadership Group was established in 2014 to provide
strengthened cohesive strategic leadership across the CPP, building on the work of the Children
and Young People’s Planning Partnership. The Leadership Group is a decision making group of
senior officers from the key stakeholders who deliver children and young people’s services in
the Scottish Borders including Scottish Borders Council, NHS Borders, Police Scotland, Scottish
Children’s Reporter Administration (SCRA) and the third sector. Central to the work of the group
is hearing the voices of children, young people and families and ensuring that their views and
experiences inform the work that we do.
Figure 1 overleaf illustrates the governance structure of the Children and Young People’s
Leadership Group (CYPLG).

Page
21 CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN | 2015-2018 | 5
DRAFT
INTEGRATED

FIGURE 1
CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S LEADERSHIP GROUP
SCOTTISH BORDERS COMMUNITY PLANNING PARTNERSHIP
STRATEGIC BOARD





Critical Services
Oversight Group

SCOTTISH BORDERS COMMUNITY PLANNING PARTNERSHIP
JOINT DELIVERY TEAM

Child Protection
Committee



Strategic Corporate
Parenting Group




CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE'S LEADERSHIP GROUP




Integrated Joint
Board



Scottish Borders Council
NHS Borders
Police Scotland
Scottish Children's Reporter Administrator
Third Sector



  

Partnership,
Implementation &
Evaluation Group

Commissioning Group

Early Years
Group

Children & Young
People's Planning
Group

Key



Direct oversight
Reporting only

The Children and Young People’s Leadership Group sets the strategic direction for the planning
and delivery of services for children and young people. The Group is responsible for identifying
challenges and mitigating risks associated with the implementation of the Plan. Its work is
supported by a set of sub groups:
The Early Years Group is responsible for the Early Years Strategy and related actions to enable
children to have the best possible start in life. This includes support for families before birth up to
when the child is 8 years old.
The Children and Young People’s Planning Group is responsible for improving outcomes and
reducing inequalities for all young people aged 8-18 years (25 for looked after young people).
The Partnership, Implementation and Evaluation group leads on the implementation of
legislation that impacts on multi agency services for children and young people. It is responsible
for developing and improving working practices across services.
The Commissioning Group leads all multi-agency commissioning activities initiated to improve
outcomes for children and their families. It seeks to ensure that GIRFEC is firmly embedded
within all commissions and to work in partnership and collaboratively with service providers.

22
6 | DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLESPage
PLAN | 2015-2018

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES
STRATEGIC OUTCOMES AND HIGH LEVEL ACTIONS | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | DELIVERY OF THE PLAN | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN & YOUNG
PEOPLE’S PLAN 2015-2018

2. STRATEGIC CONTEXT

KEY LEGISLATION AND NATIONAL POLICY
This Plan ensures that the planning and delivery of our services complies with policies,
legislation and guidance across the Scottish Government. The current phased implementation of
the requirements of the Children and Young People’s (Scotland) Act 2014 has been particularly
influential in our thinking but the legislation and policies listed in Appendix 2 provide an
indication of the range of issues which need to be considered when planning future services for
children, young people and families.

COMMUNITY PLANNING PARTNERSHIP PRIORITIES
In 2013, the Community Planning Strategic Board considered the Scottish Borders Strategic
Assessment and agreed its vision for the Scottish Borders.

By 2023, quality of life will have improved for those
who are currently living within our most deprived
communities, through a stronger economy and
through targeted partnership action
The Board chose 3 strategic priorities which will help drive progress towards its vision.
1.
2.
3.

Grow our economy and maximise the impact from the low carbon agenda
Reduce inequalities
Reform future services

All 3 strategic priorities are applicable to the Children and Young People’s Plan but the theme
of reducing inequalities is central to supporting our aim of improving the wellbeing of all our
children, young people and families.

Page
23 CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN | 2015-2018 | 7
DRAFT
INTEGRATED

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE POPULATION
LOCALITY

AGE GROUPS

TOTAL AGE
TOTAL
GROUP
POPULATION
0-24
(ALL AGES)

0-4

5-9

10-15

16-19

20-24

Berwickshire

961

1049

1264

845

948

5067

20657

Cheviot

941

931

1136

845

826

4679

19503

Eildon

1898

1900

2281

1677

1973

9729

35190

Teviot and
Liddesdale

935

857

1088

739

897

4516

17965

Tweeddale

1086

1280

1463

892

827

5548

20715

Scottish Borders

5821

6017

7232

4998

5471

29539

114030

PROJECTED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE POPULATION FOR
THE SCOTTISH BORDERS 2012-2037
8,000
7,500
7,000
6,500
6,000
5,500
5,000
4,500
4,000
3,500

Age 0-4

Age 5-9

Age 10-15

Age 16-19

2037

2036

2035

2034

2033

2032

2031

2030

2029

2028

2027

2026

2025

2024

2023

2022

2021

2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

3,000

Age 20-24

Source: NRScotland Population Projections 2012-2037				

		

The number of young people under the age of 25 accounts for 24.4% of the Scottish Borders
population. The latest projections from the National Records of Scotland (NRS) show that over
the next 25 years, Scottish Borders will see no net change in population. This is due to decreased
net migration and fewer births. The number of people aged under the age of 65 is expected to
decrease. Working age population (16-64) is projected to decline by over 13,500 or 20%. The
number of people aged 25 and under is expected to decrease by 9.8%.

24
8 | DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLESPage
PLAN | 2015-2018

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES
STRATEGIC OUTCOMES AND HIGH LEVEL ACTIONS | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | DELIVERY OF THE PLAN | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

INEQUALITIES IN THE SCOTTISH BORDERS
The Scottish Borders is a safe and healthy place to live when compared to other local authority
and NHS Board areas. However, data indicates that there are a number of areas and key groups
where significant inequalities exist and where there is a negative impact on children and young
people.
The Scottish Index of Multiple Deprivation (SIMD) is the Scottish Government's official tool for
identifying those places in Scotland suffering from deprivation. Of the 130 datazones1 in the
Scottish Borders, 5 are found in the 15% of the most deprived datazones in Scotland. These
deprived datazones are in Galashiels and Hawick and account for 3.5% of the population of the
Scottish Borders.

AREAS OF DEPRIVATION

Living in a deprived area impacts on the lives of children and young people in a variety of ways:
• Whilst rates of child poverty in the Scottish Borders are lower than Scotland as a whole (12.6%
compared to 18.6% in Scotland), rates are as high as 41% in our most deprived areas
• Household incomes in Scottish Borders are well below the Scottish average
• Poor educational attainment and achievement are more pronounced in areas of deprivation
• Children and young people are more at risk of poorer health and wellbeing outcomes in areas
with higher levels of deprivation.

The SIMD ranks small areas (called datazones) from most deprived (ranked 1) to least deprived (ranked 6,505). People using
the SIMD will often focus on the datazones below a certain rank, for example, the 5%, 10%, 15% or 20% most deprived datazones
in Scotland.

1

Page
25 CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN | 2015-2018 | 9
DRAFT
INTEGRATED

The UK Government’s Welfare Reforms are having an impact on levels of child poverty, particularly
the changes to eligibility for child tax credits and working tax credits, and we need to be mindful of
this in our planning for the future.

ATTAINMENT, ACHIEVEMENT AND INCLUSION
KEY FACTS
• The number of children and young people at school at the start of the school term in
academic year 2015/2016 was 8188 in primary school and 6438 in secondary school
• In 2015, 94% of school leavers had a positive destination compared to 92% for Scotland
• Primary school and secondary school attendance is higher in the Scottish Borders
compared to the Scottish average
• The overall positive trend in attendance is also reflected in our areas of highest deprivation
• There is a 4 year trend of improved attainment levels for children leaving the school
system. More young people are attaining higher levels of qualification and more are being
presented for formal qualifications. The range and breadth of qualification have also
increased
• Scottish Borders identifies more pupils with Additional Support Needs (25%) than the
national average (21%) (data sourced from Scottish Parliament Report, April 2015)
• Exclusions from school, both primary and secondary, have fallen significantly
• Achievement and participation levels are increasing with more young people gaining
recognition for Duke of Edinburgh, Sports Leadership and Saltire Awards than ever before.

HEALTH
KEY FACTS
• The general health of children and young people across the Scottish Borders is good but
there are some noticeable differences in a small number of deprived areas
• Uptake rates for immunisations at 24 months is 95% and for the first dose of MMR at 5
years is also 95%
• Smoking in pregnancy rates appear to be higher in the Scottish Borders than the Scottish
average. Smoking rates tend to be closely associated with deprivation
• Breastfeeding rates in the Scottish Borders are higher than the average for Scotland. In
2013-14, 35.2% of babies were exclusively breastfed at 6-8 weeks compared to 26.5% for
Scotland. Rates within the Scottish Borders are higher in the least deprived areas
• Over the decade to 2014, 75% of P1 children in Scottish Borders have been within a healthy
weight range
• 80% of pregnant women register for ante-natal care by 12 weeks of pregnancy and this is
consistent across areas of highest and lowest deprivation
• In 2013/14, 78.7% of P1 children showed no obvious signs of dental decay compared with
68.2% nationally
• In 2014/15, 92% of children offered a health and development review at 27-30 months had
an assessment completed
• 16% of the children assessed at 27-30 months had at least one development concern.
Speech, language and communication was the most common concern (12%)

Page
10 | DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES
PLAN |26
2015-2018

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES
STRATEGIC OUTCOMES AND HIGH LEVEL ACTIONS | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | DELIVERY OF THE PLAN | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

SAFETY
KEY FACTS
• In 2013/14, 201 children were referred to the Scottish Children’s Reporter, 1.05%
compared with the Scottish average of 2.09%. The most common ground for referral was
‘lack of parental care’ and the most common age bracket for referrals was 12-15 years
• On 31st July 2014 there were 16 children in the Scottish Borders on the Child Protection
Register. This is the lowest number over the last 7 years. This was lower (per 1000
population aged 0-15) than all our comparator local authorities
• Over the period July ‘14 – June ’15, there was an average of 35 referrals per month
concerning the safety of a child which were the subject of inter-agency discussion
• There was an average of 27 children on the Child Protection Register over the same time
period. The most common reasons for being on the register were domestic abuse and
emotional abuse.

WELLBEING AND LIFE CHANCES
KEY FACTS
• The most recent data for alcohol consumption in children and young people suggest that
consumption is reducing in Scottish Borders and that there is no difference between
Borders and Scotland
• In 2013, 16% of 15 year olds reported drug use in the previous year, an apparent increase
on previous years. This rate is above the Scottish average although is similar to the rate
for comparable local authority areas. 16% equates to 106 young people
• There has been a large drop in the proportion of pupils reporting smoking in recent years.
In the 2013 SALSUS study, the proportion of S4 pupils in the Borders reporting regular
smoking – 9% - is the lowest since the survey began
• Recent estimates indicate that there are in the region of 400 young carers in the Scottish
Borders. An increasing number are being identified and supported
• In 2015 there were 227 children in the Scottish Borders affected by disability and or
complex health needs requiring a high level of support in order to access education. A
small number attend specialist provision outwith the Borders but the majority attend
mainstream schools and / or support centres attached to mainstream schools
• The Scottish Borders has one of the lowest levels in Scotland of Looked After Children
(0.8%) as a percentage of the child population (Age 0-17) in comparison to the National
Figure (1.5%)
• There is an increasing trend of Looked After Children being cared for by a family member
(32 in July 2012 and 48 in July 2015) and a decreasing trend of them being placed outwith
the Scottish Borders area
• Looked After Children have improved inclusion within Primary and Secondary Schools and
a higher number are going on to a positive destination.

Page
27 CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN | 2015-2018 | 11
DRAFT
INTEGRATED

Page| 2015-2018
28
12 | DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES
STRATEGIC OUTCOMES AND HIGH LEVEL ACTIONS | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | DELIVERY OF THE PLAN | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN & YOUNG
PEOPLE’S PLAN 2015-2018

3. ACHIEVEMENTS 2012-15

The CYPLG is committed to recognising and celebrating good practice and we want to build on the
progress made in implementing the previous plan as we move ahead with our ambitions for 2015
– 18. The previous plan focused on a series of priority themes. The section below highlights key
achievements that the Leadership Group has recognised under each of these themes.

GETTING IT RIGHT FOR EVERY CHILD
We have developed a robust set of tools and processes that underpin our work with individual
children and their families. These include:
•
•
•

Multi-agency guidance to ensure a consistent approach to assessment, planning and
reviewing outcomes for individual children across our agencies and to facilitate informationsharing, supported by multi-agency training
The introduction of the Wellbeing Web tool to obtain the views of children and parents/carers
and contribute to the measurement of progress for a child
Social Workers, Police Locality Integration Officers, Community Mental Health Workers and
Family Support Workers meet regularly in Locality Business Meetings to share information
and plan intervention with children, young people and families where there are emerging
concerns.

PROMOTING CHILDREN’S RIGHTS
We have created a range of opportunities for young people to have their voice heard.
Examples include:
•
•
•
•
•

Scottish Borders Council’s Community, Learning and Development (CLD) Service delivers
Youth Voice and Youth Chex which supports children and young people across Scottish Borders
to influence decision-makers and shape services
Work in schools towards the Rights Respecting Schools awards
The achievement of meeting the European Association Hospital Charter status by the
Children’s Ward at Borders General Hospital
Working with our partners to recognize volunteering and achievements by children and young
people
Supporting the Scottish Borders three MSYPs (Members of the Scottish Youth Parliament)
who represent the constituent views of young people.

Page
29 CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN | 2015-2018 | 13
DRAFT
INTEGRATED

KEEPING CHILDREN SAFE
We have taken a variety of steps to keep children safe:
•
•
•
•

•

•

In response to a finding from the “Joint Inspection of Services to Protect Children and Young
People in 2011, a new health needs assessment process, using the GIRFEC wellbeing indicators
was tested and rolled out for children on the Child Protection Register
Following the launch of the national Risk Framework, a briefing pack was developed by an
inter-agency group which was then disseminated through professional teams
The views of parents who have been involved in the child protection process have been gathered
through an objective external body on behalf of local partners
An innovative set of integrated services have been established to provide support for children
and young people affected by domestic abuse. We have also improved information sharing and
care planning by introducing Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conferences to protect high risk
victims of domestic abuse
Following a review of drug and alcohol services, a new family oriented service was
commissioned to support children and young people affected by the drug and/or alcohol use
of their parents, carers, children and young people with their own substance use concerns and
parents who need to address the impact of their own use on their family
An established Partnership model of youth work delivery ensures local youth clubs are
available in all of our major settlements.

EARLY YEARS
There have been significant development:
•
•
•

Significant progress has been made to introduce our locality model for integrated service
delivery through the Early Years Centres in four targeted areas and a wider hub and spoke
approach elsewhere
Early Years Improvement Networks continue to develop in each locality with good – and growing
- multiagency support
We have developed new ways of working to address the Key Change themes from the National
Early Years Collaborative and are increasingly adopting the Plan, Do, Study, Act (PDSA)
improvement methodology to facilitate change.

LOOKED AFTER AND ACCOMMODATED CHILDREN
Achievements for our looked after and accommodated children include:
•
•

•
•
•
•

Free access to opportunities through the Borders Sport and Leisure Trust has been expanded
to include those in kinship care, kinship carers and care leavers
Multi-agency training focusing on meeting the needs of Looked after Children (“We Can and
Must Do Better”) has been offered to a range of staff including newly qualified teachers, LAC
Co-ordinators and Additional Needs Assistants as well as Foster Carers, Police Officers and
Educational Psychologists
Regular Corporate Parenting Seminars have been held to highlight the needs of looked after
children and the role that we all have to play in ensuring that we provide the best possible
support for these children
A new Health Needs Assessment process has been introduced for Looked After Children.
There has been a 33% increase in the number of foster carers from 2011 to 2015 (48 in July
2012 and 64 in July 2015)
Our fostering and residential services have achieved improving grades in recent care
inspections.

Page
14 | DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES
PLAN |30
2015-2018

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES
STRATEGIC OUTCOMES AND HIGH LEVEL ACTIONS | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | DELIVERY OF THE PLAN | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

PARENTING
We have supported parents in the following way:
•
•
•

A new multi-agency Parenting Framework was agreed in 2014, as the basis for ensuring a
consistent approach to the provision of parenting programmes
We have successfully introduced the Psychology of Parenting in Scottish Borders, using a
multiagency delivery team
The new Early Years Centres offer a wide range of parenting supports, programmes, family
activities as well as more informal opporunties, with a range of services working together from
statuatory to third sector.

IMPROVED ATTAINMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT FOR ALL
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE
There has been improvement in a wide range of areas:
•

•

•

•
•

•

19 schools participated in the Raising Attainment for All(RAFA) national programme focused
on ‘Closing the Gap’ in attainment, achievement and Inclusion in 2014-15. This resulted in
significant individual pupil progress for approximately 300 children. All participating schools
continue to use the PDSA improvement methodology and have targets set for children living in
deciles 1 and 2 in the national SIMD profile
There is a 4 year trend of improved attainment levels for children leaving our school system.
More young people are attaining higher levels of qualifications and more young people are
being presented for formal qualifications. The range and breadth of qualifications have also
increased with the implementation of Curriculum for Excellence
During the implementation of Curriculum for Excellence, schools have improved the quality
of their curriculum to ensure that there are greater opportunities for children and young
people to experience skills for learning, life and work. As a result, our positive and sustained
destinations are in the top quartile nationally and demonstrate a significantly improving picture
Our exclusion rates have reduced dramatically and attendance has improved. Schools are
developing more inclusive cultures and climate supported by structures and systems which
build capacity to be more responsive to the needs of our most vulnerable learners
Our systems for our most vulnerable learners have improved. The Additional Needs Multiagency Team (ANMaT) meets fortnightly and undertakes a quality assurance role in relation to
the requirements of the Additional Support for Learning Act and wider issues with regard to
children with additional support needs. Over the last 3 years, the group has tightened up the
multi-agency Co-ordinated Support Planning process, provided detailed guidance packs for
professional staff and promoted improved approaches for ensuring the views of children and
parents are fully embedded in planning and decision-making
Our partnership working to reduce inequalities has improved through the introduction of
Learning Community Partnerships. These involve Public and Third Sector organisations in the
joint analysis of local need and collaborative planning of programmes of work.

PARENTAL INVOLVEMENT
The voices of parents and carers have been heard in a number of ways:
•
•
•

The views of parents and carers have been central to the design and implementation of the
Early Years Centres
A range of training has been developed to support Parent Councils to facilitate effective working
with their school
The Parent Council Chairs Forum has regular engagement sessions with senior management
regarding process and policy.

Page
31 CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN | 2015-2018 | 15
DRAFT
INTEGRATED

IMPROVED HEALTH AND WELLBEING FOR CHILDREN
AND YOUNG PEOPLE
Health and wellbeing has been a priority:
•
•
•
•
•
•

A school and community-based Fit4Fun Programme on healthy eating and active living has
been delivered to meet identified needs
A mental health education pack has been developed to provide social and emotional health
input in school, with accompanying training for pastoral staff in schools
Community Mental Health Workers in the Locality Teams provide support to young people with
emerging emotional and mental health issues
Midwives in the multi-agency Early Years Assessment Team provide a range of support on
healthy lifestyles for pregnant women
A tobacco prevention programme has been rolled out in partnership with Community Learning
and Development with active engagement with young people
7,911 children and young people (54% of the Borders P1-S6 population) took part in at least one
extra-curricular physical activity programme in the last year.

TRANSITIONS 16+
We are clear that the transition to adult services should be seamless:
•
•
•
•
•
•

We have established an Activity Agreements programme to successfully support some of our
most vulnerable young people into further education
The Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service now provides support to young people up to
the age of 18
Improvements have been made to the Vulnerable Young Person Protocol and this is now
included in the Child Protection Procedures in order to ensure ease of access for staff.
Improvements in multi-agency working are supporting more vulnerable young people into
positive and sustained destinations through, 16+ Modern Apprenticeship and Developing the
Young Workforce
Dedicated resources are now in each High School to deliver our senior phase strategy. This will
support positive destinations for the furthest from the labour market, create local employer
partnerships agreements and establish new standards for work based learning
A strategic partnership structure is now in place to work on Piloting foundation apprenticeships
and Build on the success of our School College Academy to reward increase learner pathways
in the senior phase.

WORKFORCE PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT
Our workforce should have the right skills:
•
•

•
•

Multi-agency training and awareness raising sessions have taken place in preparation for full
implementation of the GIRFEC statutory requirements in 2016. This has included briefings,
training sessions, e-learning packages and newsletters for practitioners
The Child Protection Committee has continued to provide a range of multi-agency and single
agency training and awareness raising events. New programmes on Child Sexual Exploitation
have included tailor-made sessions for taxi drivers, 6th year pupils, ambulance drivers and
staff from Housing providers
We have continued to develop and deliver multi-agency training on a wide range of topics such
as domestic violence, substance misuse, suicide prevention and self-harm, and child nutrition.
Multi-agency training in the Solihull approach continues to prepare our early years
practitioners to support children and their families.

Page
16 | DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES
PLAN |32
2015-2018

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES
STRATEGIC OUTCOMES AND HIGH LEVEL ACTIONS | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | DELIVERY OF THE PLAN | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN & YOUNG
PEOPLE’S PLAN 2015-2018

4. VISION AND PRIORITIES

This plan sets out our vision and the five key priorities for the next 3 years and beyond,
establishing the foundation and direction for future plans.

OUR VISION
safe
included

respected

healthy

All children and
young people in the
Scottish Borders
will achieve their
unique potential

responsible

active

nurtured
achieving

Page
33 CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN | 2015-2018 | 17
DRAFT
INTEGRATED

In pursuit of our vision, we will strive to improve the wellbeing and life chances of all our children,
young people and families through the provision of high quality, integrated services. We are
committed to ensuring that all our children and young people living in the Scottish Borders have a
good childhood and are prepared for adulthood. This requires a strong focus on early intervention
and prevention, building resilience and supporting children, young people and families to develop
the skills and capabilities that enable them to navigate the challenges of modern life.
Our planning is underpinned by a set of principles in respect to how we intend to deliver services:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Focusing on early intervention and prevention; ensuring we target families early enough
Ensuring that children and families’ needs are at the centre of service design and delivery
Ensuring reducing inequalities is a priority across all services but that we get an appropriate
balance between resourcing targeted and universal services
Improving integrated working and focusing on combined resources
Working with and empowering communities
Improving outcomes for every child and their families highest achievers.

Children and young people can expect that:

we will provide them with high quality services to help give them the best possible start in life and
support them to succeed as they develop into adulthood. For those children and young people who
face specific challenges in their lives, we will provide targeted support. We will respect the rights of
children and young people and listen to their voices.

For families this means that:

we will work in partnership with parents and carers because we believe that they know their
children best and our services will be more effective if we listen to their views and include them in
decisions that affect their children. Children and young people are at the centre of what we do and
we will aim to get the right targeted support for parents at the earliest possible opportunity in order
to provide their children with a safe and nurturing upbringing.
For everyone providing services for children and young people, this means that;
we recognise and value the knowledge, skills and commitment of our workforce. We will listen to
the views of our workforce and will equip them with the development opportunities and tools to
support the delivery of high quality services. We will work with our partners to support them in
achieving joint goals.

For communities in the Scottish Borders, this means that:

it’s everyone’s business to look out for our children and young people and make them feel included
and valued within their communities. We want to work with communities towards these aims.

For the Community Planning Partnership, this means that:

we need their ongoing support to ensure the delivery of this Plan and a commitment to keeping the
needs of children, young people and their families at the centre of strategic planning in the Scottish
Borders.

Page
18 | DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES
PLAN |34
2015-2018

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES
STRATEGIC OUTCOMES AND HIGH LEVEL ACTIONS | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | DELIVERY OF THE PLAN | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

WELLBEING OUTCOMES
`Getting It Right For Every Child’ (GIRFEC) is the multi-agency approach we have now used for a
number of years to underpin our work with children, young people and families.
The national definition of wellbeing, now embedded in legislation, creates a common language
across agencies and with children, young people and their families. This is summarised in the
Wellbeing Wheel in figure 2 below. Every child and young person has the right to expect appropriate
support from adults to allow them to develop as fully as possible across each of the wellbeing
indicators and all agencies providing services which impact on children and young people must play
their part in making sure that this happens.

FIGURE 2
WELLBEING WHEEL

35 CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLAN | 2015-2018 | 19
DRAFT Page
INTEGRATED

The 8 wellbeing indicators as described in the above diagram underpin the 5 key priorities we have
chosen to focus on during the lifespan of this Plan.
Our 5 Key Priorities:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Raising attainment and achievement for all and closing the gap between the lowest and highest
achievers
Promoting the health and wellbeing of all children and young people and reducing health
inequalities
Keeping children and young people safe
Improving the wellbeing and life chances for our most vulnerable children and young people
Increasing participation and engagement .

The diagram below demonstrates the links between the strategic priorities of the Community
Planning Partnership, our key priorities and how we aim to translate these into improved outcomes
for children and young people.

SCOTTISH BORDERS CPP STRATEGIC PRIORITIES



Grow our economy
and maximise the
impact from the low
carbon agenda

Reduce inequalities



ICYPP Key Priorities

ICYPP Key Outcomes

Raising attainment
and achievement for
all the closing the gap
between the lowest
and highest achievers



Inequalities in educational
outcomes and attainment
between the most and least
deprived children across the
Borders are reduced



More children and young
people are equipped with
the knowledge and skills to
proceed to adult working live

Improving health and
reducing inequalities



Inequalities in the health
and wellbeing of young
people are reduced



Keeping children and
young people safe



More children and young
people will be protected from
abuse, harm or neglect and
will be living in a supportive
environment feeling secure
and cared for



Improving the
wellbeing and life
chances for our most
vulnerable children
and young people



The life chances of the
most vulnerable children in
the Borders are improved



All of our children and young
people will be encouraged to
be involved in the planning
provision and delivery of
servicesand their rights are
proactively considered

Future services
reform



Increasing
participation and
engagement

Page
20 | DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES
PLAN |36
2015-2018

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S LEADERSHIP GROUP

OUR GOLDEN THREAD

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES
STRATEGIC OUTCOMES AND HIGH LEVEL ACTIONS | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | DELIVERY OF THE PLAN | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG
PEOPLES PLAN 2015-2018

5. STRATEGIC OUTCOMES
AND HIGH LEVEL ACTIONS

This section outlines the strategic outcomes that we aim to achieve over the lifetime of this Plan
and the high level actions that are planned in order to support our ambitions for our children and
young people.

PRIORITY 1

Raising attainment and achievement for all and closing the gap between the lowest and
highest achievers

OUTCOME

Inequalities in educational outcomes and attainment between the most and the least deprived
children across the Borders are reduced.
More children and young people are equipped with the knowledge and skills to proceed to
adult working life.

A number of disadvantaged children in the Scottish Borders grow up without the skills needed to
thrive in the long term and it is vital we do more to “close the gap” and provide all our young people
with the best possible life chances as they leave school and move into the world of work or further
study. We have begun to address these challenging issues and inequalities through the Raising
Attainment for All (RAFA) and Early Years Collaborative activities and there is evidence that the lives
of individual children and their families have changed for the better through such actions.

37 CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLAN | 2015-2018 | 21
DRAFT Page
INTEGRATED

HIGH LEVEL ACTIONS FOR 2015-18
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Ensure that every young person leaving school in the Scottish Borders will have the offer of a
job, training or further education opportunity (Implement “Developing the Young Workforce”)
Further develop Curriculum for Excellence in all our schools
Provide more creative and positive local opportunities for training and employment for young
people
Implement the Community Learning and Development Strategy and strengthen CLD Learning
Community Partnerships
Increase parental involvement in all aspects of children’s learning, including family learning
opportunities
Implement the Senior Phase strategy
Implement the Corporate Parenting Strategy
Strengthen Early Year’s Partnerships within localities
Implement the Early Years Strategy
Implement Inclusion for All
Ensure all our staff experience high quality professional learning and training tailored to their
individual and the service needs
Increase the number of schools involved in the RAFA programme (from 19 to 29 in 2015-16
session)
Work with the third sector to build skills through volunteering, enhancing the self confidence
and life chances of young people.

Page
22 | DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES
PLAN |38
2015-2018

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES
STRATEGIC OUTCOMES AND HIGH LEVEL ACTIONS | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | DELIVERY OF THE PLAN | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

PRIORITY 2

Improving Health and Reducing Health Inequalities

OUTCOME

Inequalities in the health and wellbeing of young people are reduced

Health inequalities are unfair differences in health across different social groups and between
different groups of the population. These inequalities are not random or inevitable and can be
addressed through partnership commitment, using evidence based approaches.
Starting well is singularly important as the first 3 years of a child’s life strongly influence health
and wellbeing in childhood and adulthood. Circumstances and experiences in these early years can
impact on risks of long term ill health associated with obesity, conditions such as heart disease,
substance misuse and poor mental health.

HIGH LEVEL ACTIONS FOR 2015-18
•
•
•
•
•

Continue to develop the locality model of integrated service delivery to support families in the
Early Years, using early intervention and preventive approaches
Improve universal programmes and approaches to promote health and wellbeing to ensure
they meet the needs of those at risk of poorer health outcomes
Provide targeted support and interventions for families who are more likely to experience poor
health outcomes
Work proactively with Community Planning Partners to maximise income and resources for
households with children and to promote access to employment opportunities
Promote emotional health and wellbeing for children and young people and improve access to
timely help and support when required.

Page 39

PRIORITY 3

Keeping children and young people safe

OUTCOME

More children and young people will be protected from abuse, harm or neglect and will be
living in a supportive environment, feeling secure and cared for.
The strategic overview of the inter-agency approach to keeping children and young people safe is
undertaken by the Scottish Borders Child Protection Committee. The work undertaken is multifaceted and includes the following; ensuring that the Child Protection procedures are regularly
reviewed and updated, providing training and awareness-raising programmes to a range of
staff who directly or indirectly have a role in keeping children and young people safe, rigorously
monitoring and evaluating child protection services and ensuring that areas for improvement are
addressed; and ensuring that the views of children, young people and parents about our services
are listened to and, where appropriate, acted upon as part of our improvement planning.
However, responsibility for keeping children and young people safe does not just lie with the Child
Protection Committee, the Child Protection Unit or Social Work. For all staff who work with children
and young people, this is a fundamental part of their role. The protection of children is also the
responsibility of all members of the public. The GIRFEC approach, enables our staff to be better
able to identify risk at an earlier stage and to intervene appropriately and proportionately.

HIGH LEVEL ACTIONS FOR 2015-18
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Ensure staff are supported to develop and maintain the skills, knowledge and confidence to
deliver high quality and effective child protection services
All partners to continue to develop and deliver relevant and appropriate training
Provide staff with awareness of Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) to help them identify young
people at risk of this form of sexual abuse
Ensure child protection procedures are regularly reviewed and updated
Promote the “Management of the Unseen Child Policy” and the “Bruising in non-mobile infant”
policy
Identify and support young people at risk of self-harm
Evaluate the second year of the Multi-agency risk assessment conferences (MARACs) which
were introduced in 2014
Develop and Implement a digital safety strategy for young people across the Borders
Help support safe and trusting environments in the youth work and voluntary sector outside
school life.

Page
24 | DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES
PLAN |40
2015-2018

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES
STRATEGIC OUTCOMES AND HIGH LEVEL ACTIONS | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | DELIVERY OF THE PLAN | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

PRIORITY 4

Improving the wellbeing and life chances for our most vulnerable children and young people

OUTCOME

The life chances of the most vulnerable children in the Borders are improved

In addition to focussing our attention on those children and young people in our more deprived
communities, we are also committed to improving outcomes for particular groups whose
circumstances places them at significant disadvantage unless specific arrangements and services
are put in place for them. Examples are looked after children, children with disabilities or complex
needs, young carers, young people who have offended and children with drug/alcohol problems
or who are affected by parental substance misuse, domestic violence and parental mental health
difficulties.
In recognition of the particular needs of these children and young people, we have specific
strategies in place such as the Corporate Parenting Strategy (Looked After Children), Young Carers
Strategy and Drug & Alcohol Strategy. This ensures that the particular needs of these children and
young people have a consistently high profile with senior officers and arrangements and services for
addressing their particular needs are subject to on-going review and revision in our drive to improve
outcomes.

HIGH LEVEL ACTIONS FOR 2015-18
•
•
•
•
•
•

Complete the roll-out of the key components of the GIRFEC approach, most notably the
introduction of the Named Person Service
Improve outcomes for Looked After Children through the implementation of the Corporate
Parenting Strategy and Action Plan
Complete implementation of the Whole Systems Approach to youth offending, including the
provision of support to young offenders aged 16 and 17
Implement the Young Carers Strategy
Implement the elements of the Drug & Alcohol Strategy relevant to children and young people
Ensure sustainability of support services for families experiencing Domestic Abuse.

41 CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLAN | 2015-2018 | 25
DRAFT Page
INTEGRATED

PRIORITY 5

Increasing participation and engagement

OUTCOME

All of children and Young People will be encouraged to be involved in the planning, provision
and delivery of services and their rights are proactively considered
To make the necessary changes to our services, it is vital that the voices of our service users are at
the heart of everything we do and the Leadership Group will ensure these views influence service
development and design. In the Scottish Borders we have consulted with children, young people
and their families regarding the services we provide, but we want to build on this and enable service
users to work in partnership with us to help shape our services and how they are delivered.
If we are to recognise and understand the needs of children and young people, particularly those
facing a range of challenges, then we need to know what these are; and this will require effective
dialogue. Through utilisation of the GIRFEC approach, we will listen to children and young people
and ensure they are included as key stakeholders within service delivery and their views are valued.
Partners need to reinforce the positive contribution that young people can and should make to their
local communities and to the wider society in which they live.

HIGH LEVEL ACTIONS FOR 2015-18
•
•
•
•
•

Develop a Child Rights Strategy to support the UNCRC principles and embed them across all
services
Develop an engagement strategy for Children and Young People’s services in the Borders
targeted at all age ranges and groups of children and young people
Ensure service user feedback is collected across all relevant services and as far as possible
feedback is sought from the child, in addition to the whole family. Feedback and information on
how it is shaping service development should be reported on appropriately.
Increase the number of opportunities for vulnerable children and young people volunteering,
working with the third sector to increase the informal and out of school learning of young
people.
Complete the implementation of Self Directed Support (SDS) for all vulnerable children and
their families.

Page
26 | DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES
PLAN |42
2015-2018

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES
STRATEGIC OUTCOMES AND HIGH LEVEL ACTIONS | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | DELIVERY OF THE PLAN | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG
PEOPLES PLAN 2015-2018

6. WORKFORCE PLANNING

The organisations providing support to children, young people and families have a highly
experienced, committed and caring workforce who provide a variety of services across the
Scottish Borders. As a Leadership Group, we value the workforce and we will continue to invest
and support staff at all levels through training, information sharing and briefing to increase skill
levels and knowledge and support delivery of our priorities.
Over the last 3 years, we have developed high quality examples of multi agency training
programmes and opportunities in areas such as child protection, Early Years, GIRFEC and
children affected by parental substance misuse. We will continue to develop programmes where
appropriate to enhance capability and ensure that we have a flexible workforce who can meet
changing needs.
As decision makers, we will continue to invest and participate in national training programmes
and initiatives such as the Psychology of Parenting programme and the Early Years Collaborative
and our multi agency approach will maximise attendance, commitment and learning.
We will develop a joint workforce strategy to include the deployment of resources. We will
also ensure our workforce, training, skills and experience support multi-disciplinary and joint
working.

43 CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLAN | 2015-2018 | 27
DRAFT Page
INTEGRATED

Page| 2015-2018
44
28 | DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES
STRATEGIC OUTCOMES AND HIGH LEVEL ACTIONS | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | DELIVERY OF THE PLAN | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN & YOUNG
PEOPLE’S PLAN 2015-2018

7. RESOURCING AND
COMMISSIONING

We want to ensure that the best possible services are provided for children and young people.
We will prioritise resources towards early years and early intervention whenever possible and
we commit to working together to develop further opportunities to align our budgets in order to
deliver improved outcomes for our children and young people.
To complement our universal services and provide additional support, a range of targeted
services for children and young people are commissioned and delivered through statutory and
voluntary services. We commit to undertaking a review of all commissioned services across the
partnership to ensure that there is a collaborative approach to future commissions and there
is a strong focus on delivering new priorities. We will identify the most appropriate models of
delivering targeted services which will make best use of statutory, independent and third sector
provision. We will also explore alternative and additional sources of funding to commission
services.
We will continue to develop partnership models of service delivery to ensure the best use of
resources, knowledge and expertise is utilised in meeting the needs of our children and young
people.
We will develop a shared set of commissioning standards and guidelines.

Page
45 CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN | 2015-2018 | 29
DRAFT
INTEGRATED

DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN & YOUNG
PEOPLE’S PLAN 2015-2018

8. ENSURING DELIVERY
OF THE PLAN

The CYPLG will strive to ensure that the needs of children and young people are embedded
across the CPP. To this end, the Group will take actions to increase awareness and
understanding of young people’s needs and raise the profile of services available, so that
partners are able to consider these needs in their service planning.
Children and young people’s services require a strong evidence base to inform the planning and
delivery of services. The CYPLG will therefore develop a performance framework to support
implementation and to ensure that effective use is made of data to drive improvement. Our
new performance framework and dashboard of key performance indicators will enable us to
make shared use of available data and address gaps. This will also allow us to demonstrate that
our actions are improving outcomes for children and young people. In addition, the CYPLG is
developing a consistent framework to promote and support self evaluation across all relevant
services.

Page| 2015-2018
46
30 | DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES
STRATEGIC OUTCOMES AND HIGH LEVEL ACTIONS | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | DELIVERY OF THE PLAN | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN & YOUNG
PEOPLE’S PLAN 2015-2018

9. ENGAGEMENT AND
CONSULTATION

As partners we recognise the need to put into place more systematic and inclusive engagement
and consultation processes with our children and young people across the Borders. Throughout
this planning period the CYPLG and relevant services will evidence the steps we take to consider
the views of children, young people, families and staff and evidence how these views have been
used to better inform future service delivery and our approach to planning.
Early feedback on this plan will be taken through a series of events such as:
•

Meetings with primary and secondary age children and young people

•

Sessions with parents of children with additional support needs

•

Engagement from third sector who work directly with disadvantaged and disengaged
individuals

•

Working with our SBCs’ corporate communications team to maximise the use of online
engagement, surveys and social media

•

Workshops and drop in events

•

Utilising partners and the third sector

•

Formal consultation process

•

Wide engagement with the public in a range of venues and contexts

•

Youth voice

The final plan will reflect the outcome of these consultation processes and a full
separate report on the Consultation Process will be made available.

Page
47 CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN | 2015-2018 | 31
DRAFT
INTEGRATED

Page| 2015-2018
48
32 | DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES
STRATEGIC OUTCOMES AND HIGH LEVEL ACTIONS | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | DELIVERY OF THE PLAN | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

CONSULTATION QUESTIONS
QUESTION 1: Do we have the right priorities?
Please provide details of any areas we also need to consider.

QUESTION 2: Do you agree with the aims and outcomes set out in the plan?

CUT

QUESTION 3: Do you think that the plan will help us deliver our vision that
all children and young people achieve their unique potential?

YES

NO

YES

NO

YES

NO

Page
49 CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN | 2015-2018 | 33
DRAFT
INTEGRATED

QUESTION 4: Is the plan easy to understand?

QUESTION 5: Is it clear around what it hopes to achieve for children and
young people?

YES

NO

YES

NO

QUESTION 6: To be able to deliver on the priorities we have set out in the plan, what areas do you
think we should focus on in the next 3 years?

FREEPOST RSEZ-CLKB-YATY
Social Work
Scottish Borders Council
Newtown St Boswells
Melrose
TD6 0SA

Page| 2015-2018
50
34 | DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES
STRATEGIC OUTCOMES AND HIGH LEVEL ACTIONS | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | DELIVERY OF THE PLAN | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

APPENDIX 1

GLOSSARY
ADP

Alcohol and Drugs Partnership

A&E

Accident and Emergency

CHS

Children's Hearings Scotland

CLD

Community Learning and Development

COSLA

Convention of Scottish Local Authorities

CPP

Scottish Borders Community Planning Partnership’s

CRWIA

Child Rights and Wellbeing Impact Assessment

CYPLG

Children & Young People’s Leadership Group

EEI

Early and Effective Intervention

EQIA

Equality Impact Assessment

GES

Government Economic Strategy

GIRFEC

Getting It Right for Every Child

ICYPP

The Integrated Children & Young People’s Plan

LA

Local Authority

LAC

Looked After Children

LGBF

Local Government Benchmarking Framework

MARACs

Multi-agency risk assessment conferences (MARACs)

NHS

National Health Service

NRS

National Records of Scotland

PDSA

Plan, Do, Study, Act

PRS

Children’s Reporter via pre-referral screening

RAFA

Raising Attainment for All

SBC

Scottish Borders Council

SCQF

Scottish Credit and Qualifications Framework

SCRA

Scottish Children's Reporter Administration

SG

Scottish Government

SIMD

Scottish Index of Multiple Deprivation

WSA

Whole Systems Approach

UNCRC

United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child

Page
51 CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN | 2015-2018 | 35
DRAFT
INTEGRATED

APPENDIX 2

LOCAL STRATEGIES& PLANS
Alcohol and Drug Strategy 2015–20
Borders Alcohol and Drugs Partnership (ADP) Delivery Plan 2015-2018
NHS Borders CEL 16 Plan 2014-15 (Health of Looked after Children)
Children and Young People Business Plan 2015/16 – 2017/18
Child Protection Business Plan 2014-2015
Children & Young People’s Strategic Planning and Commissioning
Children and Young People’s Health Strategy for the Scottish Borders 2013 – 2018
Children and Young People’s Service Plan 2012-2015 (CYPPP)
Commissioning Annual Report 2014-2015 (Children and Young People’s Leadership Group)
Community Learning and Development BUSINESS PLAN 2014/15 – 2016/17
Community Learning and Development Strategic Plan 2015-2018
Corporate Parenting Strategy 2014 – 2018
Early Year Strategy 2012-2015
Economic Strategy 2013-2023
Employment Support Strategy
Framework for Positive Destinations
Scottish Borders GIRFEC Implementation Plan (PIEG)
Involved: The Participation of Children & Young People in the Scottish Borders 2012–2015
Homelessness Services Delivery Plan 2012-2016
Maternity Frameworks Action Plan
Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Conference (MARAC) Annual Report 2014/15
Physical Activity, Sport and Physical Education Strategy
Scottish Borders Parenting Strategy
Reducing Inequalities Strategy Draft 2015-2018
Senior Phase Strategy 2015
Tackling Poverty and Achieving Social Justice Strategy 2013-2018
Young Carers Strategy 2015-2018
Scottish Borders Suicide Prevention Action Plan 2014
Tobacco Control Action Plan 2015 (in draft)

PROCEDURES
Scottish Borders Child Protection Procedures
Information Sharing Guidance 2015
Parenting Framework (currently recommended Core of Programmes)
Supporting Children and Young People at Risk of Self Harm and Suicide-Scottish Borders Good
Practice Guidance
NHS Borders Unseen Child Policy 2015

Page
36 | DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES
PLAN |52
2015-2018

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES
STRATEGIC OUTCOMES AND HIGH LEVEL ACTIONS | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | DELIVERY OF THE PLAN | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

LEGISLATION
Children and Young People (Scotland) Act 2014
Additional Support for Learning Act 2004
Children’s Hearings (Scotland) Act 2011
Children (Scotland) Act 1995
The ASL Act (2004) (amended 2009) and the Education Scotland (2000) Act
The Police and Fire Reform Act 2012
United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child
Social Care (Self Directed Support) (Scotland) Act 2013

NATIONAL
16+ Learning Choices: Policy and Practice Framework: supporting all young people into positive
and sustained destinations
A Guide to Youth Justice in Scotland: Policy, Practice and Legislation: Centre for Youth and
Criminal Justice
A Refreshed Framework for Maternity Care in Scotland (2011)
Achieving Our Potential
Better relationships, better learning, better behaviour
Better Eating Better Learning COSLA / SG 2014
Breaking the link between disadvantage and low achievement in the early years
Building the Ambition: National Practice Guidance on Early Learning and Childcare Children and
Young People (Scotland) Act 2014
Changing Lives (Scottish Executive 2006)
Child Poverty Strategy for Scotland - Our Approach 2014 – 2017
Closing the Attainment Gap in Scottish Education – Joseph Roundtree Foundation
Consultation on Pregnancy and Parenthood in Young People Strategy (currently out for
consultation 2015)
Creating a Tobacco Free Generation (SG 2013)
Curriculum for Excellence
Early Years Framework
The Early Years: Good Health for Every Child (2011)
Early Years Collaborative
Early Years Taskforce Shared Vision and Priorities paper (March 2012)
Equally Well
Extraordinary Lives (SWIA 2006)
Framework for Risk Assessment, Management and Evaluation (FRAME) 2011 and Care and Risk
Management appendix to FRAME 2014
Getting it Right for Every Child (Scottish Executive, 2007)
Getting Our Priorities Right (Scottish Executive 2013)
Good Mental Health for All (Health Scotland 2015)
GUS, Growing up in Scotland
Health Inequalities Framework and Action Plan
Health Inequalities Policy Review (2013)
Health Inequalities Policy Review for the Scottish Ministerial Task Force on Health Inequalities:
Health Scotland 2013
Looked After Children: we can and must do better (Scottish Executive 2007)
Maternal and Infant Nutrition Framework for Action

53 CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLAN | 2015-2018 | 37
DRAFT Page
INTEGRATED

More Choices, More Chances
National Action Plan to Tackle Child Sexual Exploitation
National CLD Strategic Guidance
National Guidance for Child Protection in Scotland 2014
National Parenting Strategy
Opportunities for All: Supporting all young people to participate in post-16 learning, training or work
Preventing Offending – Getting it Right for Children and Young People
Preventing offending by young people: A Framework for action progress 2008-2011 and next steps
(from 2008)
Proposal for the development of guidance to support the GIRFEC provisions in the Children and
Young People (Scotland) Act 2014
Raising Attainment for All (8 years to 18 years)
Scotland’s Commissioner for Children and Young People: Poverty, educational attainment and
achievement in Scotland: a critical review of the literature
Setting the Table Health Scotland 2014 (nutritional guidance and food standards in early years)
The Right of Every Child to Good Health: Health Scotland 2015
These are Our Bairns (Scottish Government, 2008)

Page
38 | DRAFT INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES
PLAN |54
2015-2018

Page 55

You can get this document on audio CD, in large print, and various other formats
by contacting us at the address below. In addition, contact the address below for
information on language translations, additional copies, or to arrange for an officer to
meet with you to explain any areas of the publication that you would like clarified.
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE
Scottish Borders Council | Headquarters | Newtown St Boswells
MELROSE | TD6 0SA
tel: 0300 100 1800 | email: strategy@scotborders.gov.uk

Printed in the Scottish Borders. Designed by Scottish Borders Council Graphic Design Section. KG/11/15.

Page 56

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Agenda Item 12

“Keeping People Safe”

Cheviot Area Forum 9th December 2015
Scottish Fire and Rescue Service Report.
(Station Manager Matt Acton)
Purpose of the Report
The purpose of this report is to inform the Cheviot Area Forum on Scottish Fire and Rescue
Service activity since the last forum meeting on 16th September 2015.
Within the Local Fire and Rescue Plan 2014-2017 for the Scottish Borders, five priorities, and
actions outcomes are identified;
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Reduction of Dwelling Fires
Reduction of Fire Casualties and Fatalities
Reduction of Deliberate Fire Setting(Not including Dwellings)
Reduction of Unwanted Fire Alarm Signals
Reduction in Road Traffic Collisions.

Response & Resilience activity in the Cheviot Area
Incident type
Fire- House/building

Occurrences
8

Fire- Open

4

Special Service

6

Unwanted Fire Alarm 10
Signals

Detail
3 x Domestic premises
(fire in cooker)
1 x Building Alight
4 x Grain dryer alight
Secondary Fires
various
2 x Effecting entry
2 x R.T.C’s
1 x Line rescue
1 x defib request*
Non Deliberate

Cheviot Area Forum December 2015
Page 57

Casualties

Page 1

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED
*Out of Hospital Cardiac Arrest trial.
A national trial and a first for Scotland involving Scottish Fire and Rescue Service (SFRS) and
Scottish Ambulance Service (SAS) to increase survival rate of patients who suffer out of
hospital cardiac arrest went live on 29th October 2015.
The trial will run at seven fire stations across Scotland, with three of these being in the
Scottish Borders: Hawick, Lauder and Coldstream.
Firefighters at these stations have received enhanced training in life-support, through a joint
partnership approach with the Scottish Ambulance Service as part of a range of measures
that it has in place across the country to target the condition and create a nation of life
savers.
If a fire service resource with a crew who are trained to provide high quality CPR and have a
defibrillator is nearer to a potential cardiac arrest than a local Community First Responder
team, then Ambulance Control will dispatch them at the same time as the ambulance crew,
so that they can provide these life saving interventions while the ambulance is on it’s way.
The trials are part of SFRS’s commitment to supporting the Scottish Government’s Out of
Hospital Cardiac Arrest Strategy, which aims to dramatically increase patients’ survival
chances and save as many as 1,000 lives by 2020.
Partnership Working
The Scottish Fire and Rescue Service (SFRS), Community Action Team (CAT) within the
Scottish Borders core work centres on the on-going delivery of the SFRS Home Fire Safety
Visit (HFSV) policy. The team continues to expand its partnership working with key the Key
agencies including Police Scotland, Health, Social care and Housing in order to focus on
members of local communities at High Risk from fire and achieve outcomes in helping to
reduce overall numbers of accidental dwelling fires. Fire raising awareness sessions
presented by the team to partner agency practitioners have been and continue to be
successful in promoting HFSVs and encouraging agencies to make referrals using the SFRS
CSET online booking system.
Prevention and Protection
Fire prevention and protection activity over recent years has been key to reducing the
number of fires, casualties and losses in Scotland thus minimising the economic and social
impact of fire on communities. The seasonal community safety calendar provides the
catalyst for a number of initiatives and schemes throughout the calendar year.
Activity, which is ongoing now within the Cheviot Ward area;


Scottish Fire and Rescue Service staffs in all our local stations provide Home Fire
Safety Visits all year round. The visits provide the householder with a home visit,
focussing on identifying and reducing the risks of fire in the home. Smoke detectors
with a 10-year battery life are provided as part of this free service.



Firesharp is an initiative for Primary 6 pupils, providing face-to-face education within
our local Primary schools on matters of fire risk and prevention.

Cheviot Area Forum December 2015

Page 2
Page 58

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED


Fire Safety Audits provide a targeted examination of a business premises and their
relevant documents to ascertain how the premises are being managed regarding fire
safety. The enforcement officer also engages with members of staff to confirm their
level of fire safety awareness.



Unwanted Fire Signals are being addressed by our phased intervention actions
which identifies premises which are producing ‘false alarms’, provides guidance on
how to reduce a reoccurrence, and can also evoke legislation if occurrences fail to
reduce in number. Legislation and enforcement Policy and Procedure for Unwanted
Fire Alarm Signals goes live on 1st December 2014.



From the 1st April 2014 the SFRS Safeguarding Policy and Procedure for Protection of
Children and Adults at Risk of Harm was implemented to link into adult and child
protection. The introduction of this policy has created closer ties with Social Services
within Scottish Borders and ensures those people and families that fire crews
identify as at risk are brought to the attention of Social Services. This has resulted in
joint visits to homes to reduce risk to those occupiers. This period has resulted in
eight adults being referred.



Road Safety Scottish Borders Community Action Team (CAT) have been delivering
road safety awareness to secondary schools throughout the Scottish Borders with
the support of the local Whole time personnel from Galashiels and Hawick.



With our strong partnership with the local Domestic Abuse Advocacy Service and
involvement in MARAC (Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference), puts us at the
forefront of delivering the agenda of outcome six of the Local Fire Plan. The LALO
and Scottish Borders Station Manager for Prevention and Protection are fully
involved in all local MARAC processes, attending the monthly conferences and all
steering group meetings. We will also be involved the inaugural twelve-month
CAADA (Co-ordinated Action against Domestic Abuse) assessment. This work has
provided the additional advantage of strengthening our partnership with external
stakeholders, in particular Police Scotland, Adult and Child protection services and
local housing providers.



European Restart a Heart Day This is a pioneering partnership between the Scottish
Fire and Rescue Service (SFRS) and British Heart Foundation (BHF) set to give
communities across Scotland the opportunity to learn life-saving skills. All 356 of
SFRS’s fire stations recently took delivery of a BHF-donated Call Push Rescue training
kit and each station will now act as a base for local people to learn vital
cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) skills and potentially save someone’s life if they
go into cardiac arrest.
It takes just 30 minutes to learn CPR using the Call Push Rescue kit and it is taught by
DVD so there’s no need to organise a trainer. Community groups will be able to
contact their local fire station to arrange a time to go to a station, watch the DVD
and practice with the kit.
Jedburgh Fire Station opened its doors to the public as part of European Restart a
Heart Day on 16th October to offer lessons on life saving CPR skills.

Cheviot Area Forum December 2015
Page 59

Page 3

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED
Thematic Action Plan
The Autumn Thematic Action plan was completed in November and focussed on the
following areas of fire safety;






Student Safety (September)
Electrical safety
Chimney Safety
Bonfire Safety (October, November)
Older Vulnerable Persons (November)
We now move into our Winter Thematic Action Plan and will focus on the following
areas of fire safety;






Portable heater safety
Electric blanket safety
Safe use of candles
Festive safety/ fairy lights and decorations.

We have worked closely with all our partners in the Scottish Borders Council Safer
Communities Team as well as the four registered social landlords to promote these issues.
Detailed festive fire safety information was provided for the council website and home fire
safety public information articles were published in both Elder Voice and Scottish Borders
Connect. The LALO is delivering a second series of fire safety awareness presentations to
housing officers of the aforementioned landlords to re invigorate the home fire safety visit
referral process in order to continue improving partnership working, with particular focus on
the elderly and more vulnerable tenants.
The primary aims of this partnership activity are to help ensure the safety and welfare of
vulnerable persons throughout the community, and to seek to reduce the overall numbers
of accidental dwelling fires, fire casualties and fire fatalities in homes.
Retained Duty system
National recruitment campaign round three, which was launched in August 2015 for RDS
Firefighters within the Scottish Borders East, is nearing completion.
Local Fire and Rescue Plan
The Local Fire and Rescue Plan for Scottish Borders 2014- 2017 have been approved
following its consultation period. The local plan sets out the priorities for the Fire and Rescue
Service, and we will continue to work with our community planning partners and local
communities to make the most efficient use of resources and contribute towards the shared
priorities and actions within the community planning partnership and community safety
arrangements. The subsequent Ward plan for Cheviot is now complete and available to
elected members and is available within the Scottish Fire and Rescue Service Web page.

Cheviot Area Forum December 2015

Page 4
Page 60

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED
Strategic Plan 2016-2019
The engagement and consultation process regarding stakeholders being consulted in respect
of Fire and Rescue Service Strategic plan for 2016-2019 is now underway with a timescale of
the end of June for this consultation process. Respective managers from within the service
who attend the respective forums will deliver a short power point presentation on this
process during the month of June.

Station Manager Matt Acton
Scottish Fire and Rescue Service
Duns Fire Station
Tel 01361 884504
Email: matt.acton@firescotland.gov.uk

Cheviot Area Forum December 2015
Page 61

Page 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 13

NEIGHBOURHOOD SMALL SCHEMES AND QUALITY OF LIFE
Report by Service Director Neighbourhood Services

CHEVIOT AREA FORUM
9 December 2015

1

PURPOSE AND SUMMARY
This report seeks approval for the proposed new Neighbourhood
1.1
Small Schemes from the Area Forum and updates the Forum on
previously approved Neighbourhood and Quality of Life Schemes.
1.2

2

The following Neighbourhood Small Schemes have been requested for
consideration by the Cheviot members: - install dropped kerb at Hillview,
Kirk Yetholm; erect three street name plates at Oakfield Court, Kelso; erect
six street name plates at Morebattle; erect two street name plates at The
Square, Kelso; provide five picnic benches within Town & Kirk Yetholm;
repaint existing finger post sign in Maxton Village; install hand rail at West
Myrescroft, Ancrum; erect notice board within Clintmains Village; install
bench within Clintmains Village; and provide four planters within Clintmains
Village.

RECOMMENDATIONS
2.1

I recommend that the Cheviot Area Forum:
(a)

approves the following new Neighbourhood Small Schemes for
implementation:(i)

Install dropped kerb at Hillview, Kirk Yetholm.

(ii)

(vii)

Erect three no. street name plates at Oakfield Court,
Kelso.
£670
Erect six street name plates at Morebattle
Village.
£1,100
Erect two street name plates at The Square,
Kelso.
£300
Provide five picnic benches at Town & Kirk
Yetholm.
£1,240
Repaint existing finger post sign in Maxton
Village.
£210
Install handrail at West Myrescroft, Ancrum.
£377

(viii)

Erect notice board at Clintmains Village.

£735

(ix)

Install bench at Clintmains Village.

£200

(x)

Provide four planters within Clintmains Village.

£580

(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)

Cheviot Area Forum – 9 December 2015

Page 63

£820

(b)

notes the updates on previously approved Neighbourhood
Small schemes as detailed in Appendix A to this report.

(c)

notes the updates on previously approved Quality of Life
Schemes as detailed in Appendix B to this report.

(d)

agrees to delegate authority to the Service Director
Neighbourhood Services to allocate the remaining funds for
the current financial year to Neighbourhood Small Schemes,
subject to consultation with and approval by all six members
of the Cheviot Area Forum through email.

Page 64
Cheviot Area Forum – 9 December 2015

3

BACKGROUND
Elected Members, Community Councils and the public can request potential
3.1
Neighbourhood or Quality of Life schemes or work to be undertaken by the
Neighbourhood squads by contacting the Neighbourhood Area Manager
direct. Neighbourhood Operations is contactable via the new Scottish
Borders Council telephone number 0300 100 1800, e-mail address –
enquiries@scotborders.gov.uk or by writing to Neighbourhood Services,
Council Headquarters, Newtown St. Boswells, Melrose TD6 0SA.
The following schemes have been requested for consideration via these
routes to enhance the Cheviot Area:(a)

Install dropped kerb at Hillview, Kirk Yetholm (£820). This request
was received from a local Ward Councillor.

(b)

Manufacture and erect two street name plates, including new posts,
at entrance to Oakfield Court and one street name plate, fixed to
existing posts, at Sydenham Court, Kelso (£670). This request was
received from local Ward Councillors.

(c)

Manufacture and erect four wall mounted street name plates and two
post mounted street name plates at Morebattle village (£1,100).
This request was received from the local Community Council.

(d)

Manufacture and erect two street name plates at the pharmacy, The
Square, Kelso (£300). This request was received from a local Ward
Councillor.

(e)

Provide five picnic benches, including slabbed bases, at Town & Kirk
Yetholm. Also provide slabbed bases to two existing picnic benches
(£1,240). This request was received from the local Community
Council.

(f)

Repaint existing cast iron finger post sign in Yetholm Village (£210).
This request was received from a local Ward Councillor.

(g)

Install tubular handrail on the steps leading from West Myrescroft,
Ancrum Village, onto adjacent footpath (£377). This request was
received from a member of the public.

(h)

Supply and erect notice board at Clintmains Village (£735). This
request was received from a local Ward Councillor.

(i)

Install bench onto slabbed base at Clintmains Village (£200). This
request was received from a local Ward Councillor.

(j)

Supply two planters at entrance signs to Clintmains Village and two
planters adjacent to bench within the grassed area. All planters to
be positioned on slabbed bases and filled with soil/compost (£580).
This request was received from a local Ward Councillor.

3.2

Works will be scheduled to meet specific area needs, local timetable and to
maximise the overall efficiency of the works programme.

3.3

Updates on previously approved Neighbourhood Small Scheme as detailed
in Appendix A to this report.

Page 65
Cheviot Area Forum – 9 December 2015

3.4
4

Updates on previously approved Quality of Life Scheme as detailed in
Appendix B to this report.

IMPLICATIONS
4.1

Financial
(a)

A budget of £34,702 is available through Neighbourhood Services for
small schemes in the Cheviot Area in 2015/16. If the above scheme
is approved, then there will be a remaining budget of £23,695 for
future schemes.
Appendix A list up-dates on previously approved Neighbourhood
Small Schemes.

(b)

In addition, a budget of £20,000 is available for Quality of Life
schemes in the Cheviot Area in 2015/16. It has been agreed
previously that this budget will be split equally between the Kelso &
District and Jedburgh & District Wards. There is a remaining budget
of £7,391 in Kelso & District Ward and £9,127 in Jedburgh & District
Ward for future schemes.
Appendix B list up-dates on previously approved Quality of Life
Schemes.

4.2

Risk and Mitigations
If the budgets are not spent, the local area will not benefit from
improvement works being carried out.

4.3

Equalities
The proposals within this report will not have an adverse impact on any of
the equality groups - race, disability, age, sexual orientation or
religion/belief.

4.4

Acting Sustainably
It is anticipated that there will be a variety of economic, social or
environmental benefits arising from the proposed schemes in para 2.1.

4.5

Carbon Management
There are no significant effects anticipated on carbon emissions to the
Council by doing or not doing what is proposed.

4.6

Rural Proofing
This report does not relate to new or amended policy or strategy and as a
result rural proofing is not an applicable consideration.

4.7

Changes to Scheme of Administration or Scheme of Delegation
There is no change to either the Scheme of Administration or the Scheme
of Delegation.

Page 66
Cheviot Area Forum – 9 December 2015

5

CONSULTATION
5.1

The Chief Financial Officer, the Monitoring Officer, the Chief Legal Officer,
the Service Director Strategy and Policy, the Chief Officer Audit and Risk,
the Chief Officer HR and the Clerk to the Council have been consulted and
any comments received have been incorporated into the final report.
Approved by Jenni Craig

Service Director Neighbourhood Services
Author(s)
Name
Alistair Finnie

Signature ………………………….

Designation and Contact Number
Neighbourhood Area Manager (Cheviot)
01835 824000 Ext 6535

Background Papers: None
Previous Minute Reference: None
Note – You can get this document on tape, in Braille, large print and various
computer formats by contacting the address below. Jacqueline Whitelaw can also give
information on other language translations as well as providing additional copies.
Contact us at Jacqueline Whitelaw, Place, Scottish Borders Council, Council
Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, Melrose, TD6 0SA, Tel 01835 825431, Fax 01835
825071, email eitranslationrequest@scotborders.gov.uk.

Page 67
Cheviot Area Forum – 9 December 2015

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 14

PUBLIC HOLIDAY DATES - 2016
JEDBURGH
NEW YEAR 2016

FRIDAY 1 and MONDAY 4 JANUARY

MERCHANTS’ HOLIDAY

MONDAY, 7 MARCH

SPRING

MONDAY, 28 MARCH

MAY DAY

MONDAY, 2 MAY

CALLANTS’ FESTIVAL
(Annual Festival Week 3rd – 9th July)

FRIDAY, 8 AND SATURDAY, 9 JULY

ANNUAL TRADES

*COMMENCE ON MONDAY, 25 JULY FOR TWO WEEKS

AUTUMN

MONDAY, 3 OCTOBER

CHRISTMAS

SUNDAY, 25 AND MONDAY 26 DECEMBER

NEW YEAR 2017

SUNDAY 1 AND MONDAY 2 JANUARY

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

KELSO

NEW YEAR 2016

FRIDAY 1 and MONDAY 4 JANUARY

SPRING

MONDAY, 28 MARCH

MAY DAY

MONDAY, 2 MAY

MAY / JUNE
(This date replaced Spittal Trip holiday)

MONDAY, 30 MAY

ANNUAL CIVIC WEEK
(Annual Civic Week 17th - 23h July)

*FRIDAY, 22 AND SATURDAY, 23 JULY

AUTUMN

MONDAY, 3 OCTOBER

CHRISTMAS

SUNDAY, 25 AND MONDAY 26 DECEMBER

NEW YEAR 2017

SUNDAY 1 AND MONDAY 2 JANUARY

* most shops and offices remain open.

Page 73

This page is intentionally left blank

